
ELK CREEK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MONTHLY MEETING 

Thursday, February 26th, 2026 @ 18:00 hrs 
Via Zoom and In Person

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order
2. Pledge of Allegiance
3. Moment of Silence for Fallen Responders
4. Additions or Deletions to, and Approval of the Agenda
5. Public Comment Period
6. Review and Approval of January, 2026 Regular Meeting Minutes
7. Financial Matters
8. Chief Ware's Report
9. Old Business

10. New Business
a. Jefferson County Wildfire Resilliency Code Adoption 

Discussion
11. Adjournment



DRA
FT

RECORD OF MINUTES 

Elk Creek Fire Protection District 

Regular Board Meeting 

January 22, 2026 (In Person and Via Zoom) 

1. Call to Order  

President Devaney called the regular monthly meeting of the Board of Directors of the Elk Creek Fire 

Protection District (ECFPD) to order at 6:12PM on Thursday, January 22nd. The meeting was held in 

person and via Zoom pursuant to statutory notice. All board members were in attendance in person. 

2. Pledge of Allegiance - Pledge of allegiance was recited during pension board meeting held prior to 

board meeting 

3. Moment of Silence for Fallen Responders 

4. Agenda - All board members reviewed the agenda  

5. Public Comment Period – Three district residents commented 

6. Review and Approval of November 2025 Meeting Minutes - Secretary Noonan motions, VP Leo 2nds. 

All vote in favor.  

7. Financial Report 

a. Treasurer Woods presents the financial report for revenue and expenditures through 

December 2025. 

b. Treasurer Woods motions to approve December 2025 financials. Secretary Noonan 2nds. All 

vote in favor. 

8. Chief Ware’s Report - Chief Ware’s report on activity, calls, and personnel was presented. A copy of 

the report is on file with the District office.  

9. Old Business  

a. Resolution 2026-1-3 Impact Fee Implementation 

i. Chief Ware presented background on need to Impact Fee 

ii. Secretary motions to approve resolution with revised effective date of January 22, 

2026. Leo 2nds. All vote in favor. 

10. New Business 

a. Resolution 2026-1-1 – Establishing the Regular Meeting Schedule of the ECFPD Board of 

Directors for Calendar Year 2026 

i. President motions to strike item 2 regarding pension board. Leo motions. Noonan 

2nds. All vote in favor. 

b. Resolution 2026-1-2 – Rescinding Unification with Inter-Canyon and North Fork Fire Protection 

Districts to Settle Litigation Challenging Use of Exclusion Statute to Accomplish a Merger 

i. Noonan motions. Leo 2nds.  

ii. Leo votes yes. Woods votes yes. Newby votes no. Noonan votes yes. Devaney votes 

yes. 



DRA
FT

ECFPD Board Minutes 11.20.25 Page 2 

c. Social Media Policy 

i. Chief Ware presented background/reasons behind the possible need for a social media 

policy 

ii. Chmil prepared the draft – as a starting point for discussion 

iii. There is also a SOG – standard operating guideline – in draft form 

iv. Devaney asked chief to bring draft to next meeting. Asked Chmil to determine if thjis 

is a board level or operational level issue 

d. Approval of adding a new Bylaw, paragraph 3.9 Communication between the Board and Staff, 

to the existing ECFPD Bylaws 

i. Director Leo presents proposed bylaw. 

ii. Leo motions. Noonan 2nds. All vote in favor with the exception of Newby. 

11. Adjournment 

a. President Devaney motions to adjourn board meeting. 

b. Meeting adjourned at 7:38PM.  



Elk Creek Fire Protection District

Expenses January 2026

Payroll $153,756.78
Payroll Taxes $34,932.44
Benefits $69,792.44
Checks and auto payments $308,769.80

Total Expenditures $567,251.46

Revenue January 2026

Property Taxes $26,025.60
Savings Interest $24,118.99
ColTrust $50,144.59

Ambulance Payments $27,642.07
State of Colorado Fire Billing $168,876.70
Donations $250.00
Intergovernmental receipts $50,085.09
Leases $2,300.00
Paypal $377.50
UMB $249,531.36

Transfer from Savings $500,000.00



Fire Department Monthly Status Report 

February 26, 2026 

January has been a month full of transition for Elk Creek. The new RMS, accounting and training software 
has added a lot of complexity to the administrative operations of Elk Creek. The new programs will, in the 
long run, make many of our operations more efficient. In the short term, the growing pains in getting there 
are challenging. 

We are receiving emails and questions daily about the lack of snow, warm weather and catastrophic beetle 
kill in the district and what we are expecting for the upcoming 2026 fire season. It is still early to predict 
what the upcoming fire season will bring but, unless the weather takes a dramatic swing it may be an 
interesting summer.  

The weather has also made for a slower January with very few motor vehicle accidents due to road conditions. 

The first of the year has also kicked of some of our strategic plan implementation with the new health and 
wellness initiatives within Elk Creek. This includes new physical and mental health benefits for all members. 
The volunteer recruitment and retention committee is finalizing plans for volunteer recruitment which will 
start in March. We will be working with Conifer Fire Department on this project.  

Jacob Ware 
Fire Chief 



OPERATIONS (January) 
• Volunteer firefighters had 341 hours of staffing at Station 1.

• Average Response Time 9:06

       January   - Emergency Incidents 
1. Fire    3 
2. Emergency Medical Services (EMS) & Rescue 52 
3. Hazardous Situation (No Fire) 8 
3. Public Service 12 
4. No Emergency 16 
6. Special Incident 0 

91 

 January- Mutual Aid Received by Elk Creek 
Elk Creek received mutual aid 8 times  

        January - Mutual Aid Elk Creek Provided to Other Agencies 
     Elk Creek provided mutual aid 4 times 

     FIRE PREVENTION

• Partnered with Advent Health and Conifer Fire to certify 55 Conifer High School staff members in
"Stop the Bleed" protocols, significantly enhancing the district’s immediate trauma response
capabilities.

• Hosted a mass casualty incident exercise implementation training through the Foothills RETAC
with attendees from multiple agencies.

• Presented proposed wildfire regulation updates to one homeowner’s association and our
Community Ambassadors.

• With the April deadline approaching for the adoption of the state WUI code, we are working with
Jefferson County on the final steps in our adoption.

     FLEET/ FACILITIES 
• A small construction project in the ready room at Station 1 created 2 more offices.

  December   Ambulance Transports   2024 2025 2026 
32      31 37 



These regulations have been adopted by the Jefferson County Board of 
County Commissioners by resolution. This Wildfire Resiliency Code shall 

apply to all unincorporated areas of Jefferson County.

The Jefferson 
County Wildfire 
Resiliency Code



   
 

   
 

 Table of Contents 
 

CHAPTER 1 – SCOPE AND ADMINISTRATION .................................................................. 1 

SECTION 101: SCOPE AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS ................................................ 1 

SECTION 102: APPLICABILITY ..................................................................................... 3 

SECTION 103: CODE COMPLIANCE AGENCY ............................................................... 4 

SECTION 104: DUTIES AND POWERS OF THE CODE OFFICIAL ...................................... 5 

SECTION 105: PERMITS .............................................................................................. 9 

SECTION 106: FEES ................................................................................................. 10 

SECTION 107: INSPECTIONS .................................................................................... 10 

SECTION 108: ENFORCEMENT ................................................................................. 10 

SECTION 109: APPEALS ........................................................................................... 10 

CHAPTER 2 – DEFINITIONS .......................................................................................... 11 

SECTION 201: GENERAL........................................................................................... 11 

SECTION 202: DEFINITIONS ..................................................................................... 11 

CHAPTER 3 – WILDFIRE HAZARD IDENTIFICATION ........................................................ 16 

SECTION 301: GENERAL........................................................................................... 16 

SECTION 302: WILDLAND-URBAN INTERFACE AREA DESIGNATIONS .......................... 16 

SECTION 303: MAPPING AND APPLICABILITY ............................................................ 16 

SECTION 304: MAPPING AMENDMENT PROCESS ...................................................... 16 

CHAPTER 4 – STRUCTURE HARDENING ........................................................................ 17 

SECTION 401: GENERAL........................................................................................... 17 

SECTION 402: CLASS 1 INTERFACE STRUCTURE HARDENING .................................... 17 

SECTION 403: CLASS 2 INTERMIX STRUCTURE HARDENING ...................................... 20 

CHAPTER 5 – SITE AND AREA REQUIREMENTS .............................................................. 21 

SECTION 501: GENERAL........................................................................................... 21 

SECTION 502: CLASS 1 INTERFACE REQUIREMENTS .................................................. 21 

SECTION 503: CLASS 2 INTERMIX REQUIREMENTS .................................................... 23 

 



   
 

Jefferson County Wildfire Resiliency Code                                                     Page 1 
 

CHAPTER 1 – SCOPE AND ADMINISTRATION 

SECTION 101: SCOPE AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

101.1 Title. Chapters 1, 2, and 4 of this code shall be considered a part of the Jefferson 
County Building Code. Chapters 3 and 5 shall be considered a part of the Jefferson County 
Zoning Resolution, as amended, or Jefferson County’s successor regulations (hereafter the 
“Jefferson County Zoning Resolution”)   

Together, these regulations shall be known as, and shall be cited as, the “Jefferson County 
Wildfire Resiliency Code” and shall be referred to herein as “this code.” 

101.2 Scope. The provisions of this code shall apply to the construction, exterior 
alteration, movement, exterior repair, and replacement of any building or structure within 
the wildland-urban interface areas in this jurisdiction. Existing non-habitable and non-
occupiable buildings or structures, which undergo a change of occupancy to include 
habitable or occupiable space, shall comply with the provisions of this code for new 
buildings or structures. Although not considered a structure, new fences and retaining 
walls are required to follow the provisions of Chapter 5 in this code. 

Buildings, structures, or conditions in existence at the time of the adoption of this code are 
allowed to have their use or occupancy continued, if such condition, use or occupancy 
was legal at the time of the adoption of this code, provided that such continued use does 
not constitute a distinct danger to life or property.   

When portions of existing non-habitable and non-occupiable buildings or structures 
undergo a change of occupancy which includes a residential occupancy classification or 
single- or two-family dwellings, per the County's adopted Building Codes and Supplements 
the building or structure shall comply with the provisions of this code for new buildings or 
structures. 

Buildings or structures moved into or within the jurisdiction shall comply with the 
provisions of this code for new buildings or structures. 

101.2.1 Date effective. This code shall become effective on July 1, 2026, and shall 
apply to all permits applied for on or after July 1, 2026. Applications for permits 
made prior to July 1, 2026, shall be governed by the terms of the codes and 
regulations in effect at the time of application. 

101.3 Purpose. The purpose of this code is to establish minimum regulations for the 
safeguarding of life and for property protection. Regulations in this code are intended to 
mitigate the risk to life and structures from intrusion of fire from wildland fire exposures and 



   
 

Jefferson County Wildfire Resiliency Code                                                     Page 2 
 

fire exposures from adjacent structures and to mitigate structure fires from spreading to 
wildland fuels. The extent of this regulation is intended to be tiered commensurate with the 
relative level of hazard present. 

The unrestricted use of property in wildland-urban interface areas is a potential threat to 
life and property from fire and resulting erosion. Safeguards to prevent the occurrence of 
fires and to provide adequate fire protection facilities to control the spread of fire 
in wildland-urban interface areas shall be in accordance with this code. 

The standards in this code are incorporated into and are a part of the jurisdiction’s adopted 
Building Codes and Supplements and the Jefferson County Zoning Resolution, and 
augment the jurisdiction’s fire codes, to mitigate the fire- and life-safety hazards of 
the wildland-urban interface areas. 

101.4 Retroactivity. The provisions of the code shall apply to conditions arising after the 
adoption thereof, conditions not legally in existence at the adoption of this code and 
conditions that, in the opinion of the code official, constitute a distinct hazard to life or 
property. 

Exception: Provisions of this code that specifically apply to existing conditions are 
retroactive. 

101.5 Additions or alterations. Additions or alterations shall be permitted to be made to 
any building or structure without requiring the existing building or structure to comply with 
all of the requirements of this code, provided that the addition or alteration conforms to 
that required for a new building or structure. 

Exception: Provisions of this code that specifically apply to existing conditions are 
retroactive. 

Additions or alterations shall not be made to an existing building or structure that will cause 
the existing building or structure to be in violation of any of the provisions of this code nor 
shall such additions or alterations cause the existing building or structure to become 
unsafe. An unsafe condition shall be deemed to have been created if an addition or 
alteration will cause the existing building or structure to become structurally unsafe or 
overloaded; will not provide adequate access in compliance with the provisions of this 
code or will obstruct existing exits or access; will create a fire hazard; will reduce required 
fire resistance or will otherwise create conditions dangerous to human life. 

101.6 Maintenance. Buildings, structures, landscape materials, vegetation, defensible 
space or other devices or safeguards required by this code shall be maintained in 
conformance to the code edition under which installed. The owner or the owner’s 



   
 

Jefferson County Wildfire Resiliency Code                                                     Page 3 
 

authorized agent shall be responsible for the maintenance of buildings, structures, 
landscape materials and vegetation. 

SECTION 102: APPLICABILITY 

102.1 General. Where there is a conflict between a general requirement and a specific 
requirement, the specific requirement shall govern. Where, in any specific case, different 
sections of this code, or any other adopted County code or regulation, specify different 
materials, methods of construction or other requirements, the most restrictive shall 
govern. 

102.2 Other laws. The provisions of this code shall not be deemed to nullify any provisions 
of local, state, or federal law. 

102.3 Application of references. References to chapter or section numbers, or to 
provisions not specifically identified by number, shall be construed to refer to such 
chapter, section or provision of this code. 

102.4 Referenced codes and standards. Certain additional codes and standards are 
referenced in this code and are listed throughout. Such codes and standards shall be 
considered as part of the requirements of this code to the prescribed extent of each such 
reference and as further regulated in Sections 102.4.1 and 102.4.2. 

102.4.1 Conflicts. Where conflicts occur between provisions of this code and the 
referenced codes and standards, the most restrictive shall apply.  

102.4.2 Provisions in referenced codes and standards.  Where the extent of the 
reference to a referenced code or standard includes subject matter that is within the 
scope of this code, the provisions of this code, as applicable, shall take precedence 
over the provisions in the referenced standard. 

102.5 Subjects not regulated by this code. Where applicable standards or requirements 
are not set forth in this code, or are contained within other laws, codes, regulations, 
ordinances or policies adopted by the jurisdiction, compliance with applicable standards 
of other nationally recognized safety standards, as approved, shall be deemed as prima 
facie evidence of compliance with the intent of this code. Nothing herein shall derogate 
from the authority of the code official to determine compliance with codes or standards for 
those activities or installations within the code official’s jurisdiction or responsibility. 

102.6 Matters not provided for. Requirements that are essential for the public safety of an 
existing or proposed activity, building or structure, or for the safety of the occupants 
thereof, which are not specifically provided for by this code, shall be determined by 



   
 

Jefferson County Wildfire Resiliency Code                                                     Page 4 
 

the code official consistent with the necessity to establish the minimum requirements to 
safeguard the public health, safety and general welfare. 

102.7 Partial invalidity. In the event any part or provision of this code is held to be illegal or 
void, this shall not have the effect of making void or illegal any of the other parts or 
provisions. 

102.8 Exemptions: Work exempt from the requirements of this code.  Exemptions from 
code requirements shall not be deemed to grant authorization for any work that violates the 
provisions of this code or any other laws, ordinances, regulations or rules of the 
jurisdiction. This code does not apply to: 

1. Alterations that only affect the interior of existing structures. 
2. The reconstruction, replacement, alteration, or repair of the exterior walls of an 

existing building, when less than 25 percent of the surface area of all exterior walls is 
affected. 

3. The reconstruction, replacement, alteration, or repair of the existing exterior roof 
covering of an existing building when less than 25 percent of the surface area of the 
exterior roof covering or an attachment thereto is affected. 

4. Alterations or repairs to the exterior of an existing structure, or an attachment to it, 
when less than 25 percent of the exterior of the structure is affected by the 
alteration or repair. 

5. Painting, staining, and similar maintenance or restorative work.  
6. Materials and methods of construction, when required to maintain a building’s or 

structure’s continued designation as a historic structure, are exempt from the 
requirements of this code. 

7. One story detached accessory, non-habitable structures, such as tool and storage 
sheds, playhouses and similar uses, provided that the structure does not exceed 
120 square feet and the structure is located greater than or equal to 10 feet from the 
nearest adjacent occupiable structure. The distance between structures is 
measured from the nearest point of the structures. 

8. Barns used exclusively to house livestock, store livestock feed, store farm products, 
protect equipment, or manage agricultural waste, located more than 50 feet from a 
structure containing occupiable or habitable space. The distance between 
structures is measured from the nearest point of the structures. 

9. Fences located more than 8 feet from the nearest point of a structure. 

SECTION 103: CODE COMPLIANCE AGENCY 

103.1 Creation of Agency. The Jefferson County Department of Development and 
Transportation is hereby designated as the code compliance agency and the official in 



   
 

Jefferson County Wildfire Resiliency Code                                                     Page 5 
 

charge thereof shall be known as the code official. The function of the agency shall be the 
implementation, administration and enforcement of the provisions of this code. 

103.2 Code Official. The code official is the Director of Development and Transportation or 
his or her delegee. 

103.3 Deputies. The code official shall have the authority to appoint deputy code officials, 
other related technical officers, inspectors and other employees. Such employees shall 
have powers as delegated by the code official. 

SECTION 104: DUTIES AND POWERS OF THE CODE OFFICIAL 

104.1 Powers and duties of the code official.  The code official is hereby authorized to 
enforce the provisions of this code. 

104.2 Determination of compliance. The code official shall have the authority to 
determine compliance with this code, to render interpretations of this code and to 
adopt policies and procedures in order to clarify the application of its provisions. Such 
interpretations, policies and procedures: 

1. Shall be in compliance with the intent and purpose of this code. 
2. Shall not have the effect of waiving requirements specifically provided for in this 

code. 

104.2.1 Technical assistance. To determine compliance with this code, the code 
official is authorized to require the owner, the owner’s authorized agent or the 
person in possession or control of the building or premises to provide a technical 
opinion and report. 

104.2.1.1 Costs. A technical opinion and report shall be provided without 
charge to the jurisdiction. 

104.2.1.2 Preparer qualifications. The technical opinion and report shall be 
prepared by a qualified engineer, specialist, laboratory or fire safety specialty 
organization acceptable to the code official. The code official is authorized to 
require design submittals to be prepared by, and bear the stamp of, 
a registered design professional. 

104.2.1.3 Content. The technical opinion and report shall analyze the 
properties of the design, operation or use of the building or premises, the 
facilities and appurtenances situated thereon and fuel management to 
identify and propose necessary recommendations. 



   
 

Jefferson County Wildfire Resiliency Code                                                     Page 6 
 

104.2.1.4 Tests. Where there is insufficient evidence of compliance with the 
provisions of this code, the code official shall have the authority to require 
tests as evidence of compliance. Test methods shall be as specified in this 
code or by other recognized test standards. In the absence of recognized test 
standards, the code official shall approve the testing procedures. Such tests 
shall be performed by a party acceptable to the code official. 

104.2.2 Alternative materials, design and methods. The provisions of this code 
are not intended to prevent the installation of any material or to prohibit any design 
or method of construction not specifically prescribed by this code, provided that 
any such alternative is not specifically prohibited by this code and has 
been approved. 

104.2.2.1 Approval authority. An alternative material, design or method 
shall be approved where the code official finds that the proposed alternative 
is satisfactory and complies with Sections 104.2.2.2 through 104.2.2.7, as 
applicable. 

104.2.2.2 Application and disposition. A request to use an alternative 
material, design or method of construction shall be submitted in writing to 
the code official for approval. Where the alternative material, design or 
method of construction is not approved, the code official shall respond in 
writing, stating the reasons the alternative was not approved. 

104.2.2.3 Compliance with code intent. An alternative material, design or 
method of construction shall comply with the intent of the provisions of this 
code. 

104.2.2.4 Equivalency criteria. An alternative material, design or method of 
construction shall, for the purpose intended, be not less than the equivalent 
of that prescribed in this code with respect to all of the following, as 
applicable: 

1. Quality. 
2. Strength. 
3. Effectiveness. 
4. Durability. 
5. Safety, other than fire safety. 
6. Fire safety. 

104.2.2.5 Tests. Tests conducted to demonstrate equivalency in support of 
an alternative material, design or method of construction application shall 

https://codes.iccsafe.org/lookup/IWUIC2024V2.0_Ch01_SubCh02_Sec104.2.2.2/4265
https://codes.iccsafe.org/lookup/IWUIC2024V2.0_Ch01_SubCh02_Sec104.2.2.7/4265


   
 

Jefferson County Wildfire Resiliency Code                                                     Page 7 
 

be of a scale that is sufficient to predict performance of the end use 
configuration. Tests shall be performed by a party acceptable to the code 
official. 

104.2.2.5.1 Fire tests. Tests conducted to demonstrate equivalent 
fire safety in support of an alternative material, design or method of 
construction application shall be of a scale that is sufficient to predict 
fire safety performance of the end use configuration. Tests shall be 
performed by a party acceptable to the code official. 

104.2.2.6 Reports. Supporting data, where necessary to assist in the 
approval of materials or assemblies not specifically provided for in this code, 
shall comply with Sections 104.2.2.6.1 and 104.2.2.6.2. 

104.2.2.6.1 Evaluation reports. Evaluation reports shall be issued by 
an approved agency and use of the evaluation report shall require 
approval by the code official for the installation. The alternate 
material, design or method of construction and product evaluated 
shall be within the scope of the code official’s recognition of 
the approved agency. Criteria used for the evaluation shall be 
identified within the report and, where required, provided to the code 
official. 

104.2.2.6.2 Other reports. Reports not complying with Section 
104.2.2.6.1 shall describe criteria, including but not limited to any 
referenced testing or analysis, used to determine compliance with 
code intent and justify code equivalence. The report shall be prepared 
by a qualified engineer, specialist, laboratory or fire safety specialty 
organization acceptable to the code official. The code official is 
authorized to require design submittals to be prepared by, and bear 
the stamp of, a registered design professional. 

104.2.2.7 Peer review. The code official is authorized to require submittal of 
a peer review report in conjunction with a request to use an alternative 
material, design or method of construction, prepared by a peer reviewer that 
is approved by the code official. 

104.2.3 Modifications. Where there are practical difficulties involved in carrying out 
the provisions of this code, the code official shall have the authority to grant 
modifications for individual cases, provided that the code official shall first find 
that one or more special individual reasons make the strict letter of this code 

https://codes.iccsafe.org/lookup/IWUIC2024V2.0_Ch01_SubCh02_Sec104.2.2.6.1/4265
https://codes.iccsafe.org/lookup/IWUIC2024V2.0_Ch01_SubCh02_Sec104.2.2.6.2/4265
https://codes.iccsafe.org/lookup/IWUIC2024V2.0_Ch01_SubCh02_Sec104.2.2.6.1/4265
https://codes.iccsafe.org/lookup/IWUIC2024V2.0_Ch01_SubCh02_Sec104.2.2.6.1/4265


   
 

Jefferson County Wildfire Resiliency Code                                                     Page 8 
 

impractical, that the modification is in conformance with the intent and purpose of 
this code, and that such modification does not lessen health, life and fire safety 
requirements. The details of the written request and action granting modifications 
shall be recorded and entered into the files of the code enforcement agency. 

104.3 Applications and permits. The code official is authorized to receive applications, 
review construction documents and issue permits for construction regulated by this code, 
and inspect the premises for which such permits have been issued and enforce 
compliance with the provisions of this code. 

104.4 Right of entry. Where it is necessary to make an inspection to enforce the provisions 
of this code, or where the code official has reasonable cause to believe that there exists 
in a structure or on any premises a condition that is contrary to or in violation of this 
code that makes the structure or premises unsafe, dangerous or hazardous, the code 
official is authorized to enter the structure or premises at all reasonable times to inspect or 
to perform the duties imposed by this code. If such structure or premises is occupied, 
the code official shall present proper credentials to the occupant and request entry. 
If such structure or premises is unoccupied, the code official shall first make a reasonable 
effort to locate the owner, the owner’s authorized agent or other person having charge or 
control of the structure or premises and request entry. If such entry is refused, then the 
code official shall have recourse to every remedy provided by law to secure entry. 

104.4.1 Warrant. Where the code official has first obtained a proper inspection 
warrant or other remedy provided by law to secure entry, an owner, the owner’s 
authorized agent, occupant or person having charge, care or control of the structure 
or premises shall not fail or neglect, after a proper request is made as herein 
provided, to permit entry therein by the code official for the purposes of inspection 
and examination pursuant to this code. 

104.5 Identification. The code official shall carry proper identification when inspecting 
structures or premises in the performance of duties under this code. 

104.6 Notices and orders. The code official shall issue all necessary notices or orders to 
ensure compliance with this code. Notices of violations shall be in accordance with the 
violation procedures related to the adopted Jefferson County Building Codes and 
Supplements or the Jefferson County Zoning Resolution, as may be applicable. 

104.7 Official records. Official records shall be maintained in accordance with the 
Colorado Open Records Act and County record retention policies. 

104.8 Approved materials and equipment. Materials, equipment and devices approved 
by the code official shall be constructed and installed in accordance with such approval. 



   
 

Jefferson County Wildfire Resiliency Code                                                     Page 9 
 

104.8.1 Materials and equipment reuse. Materials, equipment and devices shall 
not be reused unless such elements are in good working order and approved. 

SECTION 105: PERMITS 

105.1 General. Within the wildland-urban interface Class 1 and Class 2 Areas, structure 
hardening will be regulated as part of and through the permit process specified in the 
adopted Jefferson County Building Codes and Supplements.  Site and area regulations will 
be regulated as part of and through the permit process specified in the Jefferson County 
Zoning Resolution. 

The code official is authorized to stipulate conditions for permits. Permits shall not be 
issued where public safety would be at risk, as determined by the code official. 

105.2 Permit application.  In obtaining permits, every such application shall: 

1. Identify the Wildland-Urban Interface Class. 
2. Identify and describe the work, activity, operation, practice or function to be covered 

by the permit for which application is made. 
3. Describe the land on which the proposed work is to be done by legal description, 

street address or similar description that will readily identify and definitely locate 
the proposed building, work, activity, operation, practice or function. 

4. Indicate the use or occupancy for which the proposed work is intended. 
5. Be accompanied by plans, diagrams, computation and specifications and other 

data as required to determine compliance. 
6. Give such other data and information as required by the code official. 

105.3 Preliminary inspection. Before a permit is issued, the code official is authorized to 
inspect and approve the systems, equipment, buildings, devices, premises and spaces or 
areas to be used. 

105.4 Refusal to issue a permit. Where the application or construction documents do not 
conform to the requirements of pertinent laws, the code official shall reject such 
application in writing, stating the reasons therefor. 

105.5 Validity of permit. The issuance or granting of a permit or approval of plans, 
specifications and computations shall not be construed to be a permit for, or an approval 
of, any violation of any of the provisions of this code or of any other ordinance of the 
jurisdiction. Permits presuming to give authority to violate or conceal the provisions of this 
code or other ordinances of the jurisdiction shall not be valid. 

105.6 Revocation of permits. The code official is allowed to, in writing, suspend or revoke 
a permit issued under the provisions of this code whenever the permit is issued in error or 



   
 

Jefferson County Wildfire Resiliency Code                                                     Page 10 
 

on the basis of incorrect information supplied, or in violation of any ordinance or regulation 
or any of the provisions of this code. 

SECTION 106: FEES 

106.1 Payment of fees. Fees for permits, if required, shall be in accordance with the 
Building Permit Fee schedule and/or the Development Application & Permit Fee schedule 
adopted by the Jefferson County Board of County Commissioners. A permit shall not be 
valid until the fees prescribed by law have been paid. An amendment to a permit shall not 
be released until the additional fee, if any, has been paid. 

SECTION 107: INSPECTIONS  

107.1 General. Inspections shall generally be conducted as specified in adopted Jefferson 
County Building Codes and Supplements or in the Jefferson County Zoning Resolution, as 
applicable. 

SECTION 108: ENFORCEMENT 

108.1 General. Enforcement of this code shall be in accordance with the adopted   
Jefferson County Building Codes and Supplements, or the Jefferson County Zoning 
Resolution, as applicable.  

SECTION 109: APPEALS 

109.1 General. Appeals shall be as specified in the adopted Jefferson County Building 
Codes, the Building Code Supplements, or in the Jefferson County Zoning Resolution, as 
each may be applicable. 

Generally, the Board of Review has authority to hear and decide appeals or orders, 
requirements or decisions of the code official relating to the application and interpretation 
of Chapters 1, 2, and 4 of this code or arising out of the permitting process set forth in the 
adopted Jefferson County Building Codes and Supplements.  

The Jefferson County Board of Adjustment has authority to hear and decide appeals or 
orders, requirements or decisions of the code official relating to the application and 
interpretation of Chapters 3 and 5 of this code or arising out of the permitting process set 
forth in the Jefferson County Zoning Resolution. 

An applicant for an appeal arising out of the administration of the provisions of this code 
that are incorporated into or are a part of both the Jefferson County Building Codes and 
Supplements and the Jefferson County Zoning Resolution may elect to have the Board of 
Adjustment hear the entirety of the appeal.  



   
 

Jefferson County Wildfire Resiliency Code                                                     Page 11 
 

CHAPTER 2 – DEFINITIONS 

SECTION 201: GENERAL 

201.1 Scope. Unless otherwise expressly stated, the following words and terms shall, for 
the purposes of this code, have the meaning shown in this chapter. 

201.2 Interchangeability. Words stated in the present tense include the future; words 
stated in the masculine gender include the feminine and neuter; And the singular number 
includes the plural and the plural the singular. 

201.3 Terms and defined in other codes. Where terms are not defined in this code and are 
defined in other codes and regulations, such terms shall have the meaning ascribed to 
them as in those codes and regulations. 

201.4 Terms not defined. Where terms are not defined through the methods authorized by 
this section, such terms shall have their ordinarily accepted meanings such as the context 
implies. 

201.5 Defined terms in this code. Where terms defined by this code are used within this 
code, the term is italicized. 

SECTION 202: DEFINITIONS 

ACCESSORY STRUCTURE. A subordinate building, or portion of a main building, the use of 
which is incidental to that of the main building on the same lot. This includes detached 
garages, workshop, sheds, barns, coops, greenhouses, and detached living space. 

APPROVED. Acceptable to the code official.  

BARN. A building used exclusively for the housing and care of horses or other permitted 
livestock, and for the storage of feed, hay, other farm crops, and farm or equine equipment. 
Barns may not be used for a garage or as a storage shed for items not associated with 
livestock or farm crops. 

BUILDING. Any structure intended for supporting or sheltering any occupancy.  

CLASS A TESTS. Tests applicable to roof coverings that are expected to be effective against 
severe fire exposure, before a high degree of fire protection to the roof deck, do not slip 
from position, and are not expected to present a flying brand hazard. 

CODE OFFICIAL.  The official designated by the jurisdiction to interpret and enforce this 
code, or the code official’s authorized representative. 



   
 

Jefferson County Wildfire Resiliency Code                                                     Page 12 
 

DEFENSIBLE SPACE. An area either natural or man-made, where material capable of 
allowing a fire to spread unchecked has been treated, cleared or modified to slow the rate 
and intensity of an advancing wildfire and to create an area for fire suppression operations 
to occur. 

EMBELLISHMENTS. Elements incorporated in design and construction for ornamental or 
decorative purposes that are not integral to the structure or structural support. 

FIRE INTENSITY CLASSIFICATION. The level of fire intensity identified for areas where 
significant fuel hazards and associated dangerous fire behavior may exist, based upon 
vegetative fuels, topography, weather conditions, and flame length value. 

FIRE-RESISTANCE-RATED CONSTRUCTION. The use of materials and systems in the 
design and construction of a building or structure to safeguard against the spread of fire 
within a building or structure and the spread of fire to or from buildings or structures to the 
wildland-urban interface area. 

FIRE-RETARDANT-TREATED WOOD. Fire-retardant-treated wood is any wood product with 
a minimum 1-inch nominal or  ¾ inch actual  thickness, that when impregnated with 
chemicals by a pressure process or other means during manufacture, shall have, when 
tested in accordance with ASTM E84 or UL 723, a listed flame spread index of 25 or less. 
The ASTM E84 or UL 723 test shall be continued for an additional 20 minutes and the flame 
front shall not progress more than 10.5 feet beyond the center line of the burners at any 
time during the test. 

FLAME SPREAD INDEX. A comparative measure, expressed as the dimensionless number, 
derived from visual measurements of the spread of flame versus time for a material tested 
in accordance with ASTM 84.  

FUEL MODIFICATION. A method of modifying fuel load by reducing the amount of non fire 
resistive vegetation or altering the type of vegetation to reduce the fuel load. 

HABITABLE SPACE. A space in a building for living, sleeping, eating or cooking. 

HISTORIC STRUCTURE. Any building or structure that has one or more of the following: 

1. Listed, or certified as eligible for listing, by the state historic preservation office or 
Keeper of the National Register of Historic Places, in the National Register of 
Historic Places. 

2. Designated as historic under applicable state or local law. 
3. Certified as contributing resource within the National Register, state designated or 

locally designated historic district. 



   
 

Jefferson County Wildfire Resiliency Code                                                     Page 13 
 

HOME IGNITION ZONE (HIZ). The home and the area around the home which takes into 
account both the potential of the structure to ignite and the quality of defensible space 
surrounding it. 

IGNITION-RESISTANT BUILDING MATERIAL.  A type of building material that resists 
ignition or sustained flaming combustion sufficiently so as to reduce losses from wildfire 
exposure of burning embers and small flames. If product literature from manufacturers or 
testing shows the manufacturers’ materials or products melt, drip or delaminate, those 
materials or products which melt, drip or delaminate, to the extent that the flame front is 
interrupted, are not permitted. 

Ignition-Resistant Building Materials shall comply with the following: 

1. Material shall be tested on all sides with the extended ASTM E84 (UL 723) test or 
ASTM E2768, except panel products shall be permitted to test only the front and 
back faces.  Panel products shall be tested with a ripped or cut longitudinal gap of 
1/8 inch.  Materials that, when tested in accordance with the test procedures set 
forth in ASTM E84 or UL 723 for a test period of 30 minutes, or with ASTM E2768, 
comply with the following: 

a. Flame spread.  Material shall exhibit a flame spread index not exceeding 25 
and shall not show evidence of progressive combustion following the 
extended 30-minute test.   

b. Flame front.  Material shall exhibit a flame front that does not progress more 
than 10.5 feet beyond the centerline of the burner at any time during the 
extended 30-minute test. 

c. Weathering.  Ignition-resistant building materials shall maintain their 
performance in accordance with this section under conditions of use.  
Materials shall meet the performance requirements for weathering (including 
exposure to temperature, moisture and ultraviolet radiation) contained in the 
following standards, as applicable to the materials and the conditions or use: 

i. Method A “Test method for Accelerated Weathering of Fire-Retardant-
Treated Wood for Fire Testing” in ASTM D2898, for fire-retardant 
treated wood, wood-plastic composite and plastic lumber materials. 

ii. ASTM D7032 for wood-plastic composite materials. 
iii. ASTM D6662 for plastic lumber materials. 

d. Identification.  Materials shall bear identification showing the fire test results. 
Exception: Materials composed of a combustible core and a 
noncombustible exterior covering made from either aluminum at a 
minimum 0.019 inch (0.48 mm) thickness or corrosion-resistant steel 



   
 

Jefferson County Wildfire Resiliency Code                                                     Page 14 
 

at a minimum 0.0149 inch (0.38 mm) thickness shall not be required 
to be tested with a ripped or cut longitudinal gap. 

LOG WALL CONSTRUCTION. A type of construction in which exterior walls are 
constructed of solid wood members and where the smallest horizontal dimension of each 
solid wood member is not less than 6 inches. Log wall construction shall follow 
requirements of ICC 400. 

MASS TIMBER CONSTRUCTION. As described in section 602.4 of the 2024 International 
Building Code.  Also known as Type IV construction.  

MULTILAYERED GLAZED PANELS.  Window or door assemblies that consists of two or 
more independently glazed panels installed parallel to each other, having a sealed air gap 
in between, within a frame designed to fill completely the window or door opening in which 
the assembly is intended to be installed. 

NONCOMBUSTIBLE.  As applied to building construction material means and material 
that, in the form in which it is used, is one of the following: 

1. Material of which no part will ignite and burn when subjected to fire. 
2. Any material confirming to ASTM E136 shall be considered noncombustible within 

the meaning of this section. 
3. For the purposes of this code, fire-rated gypsum board tested in accordance with 

ASTM C1396 with no less than a 1-hour fire-resistance-rating with fire exposure from 
the outside only is considered a noncombustible material. 

OCCUPIABLE SPACE.   A room or enclosed space designed for human occupancy in which 
individuals congregate for amusement, education or similar purposes or in which 
occupants are engaged at labor.  

ROOF ASSEMBLY.  A system designed to provide weather protection and resistance to 
design loads. The system consists of a roof covering and roof deck or a single component 
serving as both the roof covering and roof deck. A roof assembly can include an 
underlayment, thermal barrier, ignition barrier, insulation or vapor retarder. 

ROOF COVERING. The covering applied to the roof deck for weather resistance, fire 
classification or appearance. 

ROOF DECK. The flat or sloped surface not including its supporting members or vertical 
supports. 

SLOPE. The variation of terrain from the horizontal; The number of feet rise or fall per 100 
feet measured horizontally, expressed as a percentage. 



   
 

Jefferson County Wildfire Resiliency Code                                                     Page 15 
 

STRUCTURE.  That which is built or constructed. For the purposes of this code, fences are 
not considered a structure.   

STRUCTURE IGNITION ZONE.  Structure Ignition Zone is the structure and the area around 
the structure (or home). The SIZ takes into account both the potential of the structure to 
ignite and the quality of defensible space surrounding it. 

TREE CROWN. The primary and secondary branches growing out from the main stem, 
together with twigs and foliage. 

WILDFIRE MITIGATION SPECIALIST. An individual who meets the minimum training and 
experience requirements specified in the Jefferson County Zoning Resolution to be 
qualified by the County for conducting structure ignition zone inspections. 

WILDLAND-URBAN INTERFACE INTERIOR. That geographical area farther away from 
wildland vegetation than the Interface Perimeter where homes are primarily exposed to 
radiant heat and embers from adjacent homes as well as embers from burning vegetation. 
These areas have the potential for urban conflagrations. 

WILDLAND-URBAN INTERFACE PERIMETER. That geographical area adjacent to wildland 
vegetation where homes can be exposed to embers and radiant and convective heat from 
burning vegetation and adjacent homes. These areas have the potential for wildland fires to 
transition into urban conflagrations. 

WILDLAND-URBAN INTERMIX. That geographical area where the built environment 
intermingles with wildland vegetation and where homes are primarily exposed to embers 
and radiant and convective heat from burning vegetation. 

 

  



   
 

Jefferson County Wildfire Resiliency Code                                                     Page 16 
 

CHAPTER 3 – WILDFIRE HAZARD IDENTIFICATION 

SECTION 301: GENERAL 

301.1 Scope. The provisions of this chapter establish the applicable map and 
classifications for this code.  

SECTION 302: WILDLAND-URBAN INTERFACE AREA DESIGNATIONS 

302.1 Declaration. The Jefferson County Wildland-Urban Interface map identifying the 
areas subject to the provisions of this code have been adopted as the Wildland-Urban 
Interface Overlay District within the Jefferson County Zoning Resolution. 

SECTION 303: MAPPING AND APPLICABILITY 

303.1 Applicability of Code Provisions.  The requirements of this code shall apply to all 
parcels located within designated wildland-urban interface and intermix areas derived from 
corresponding fire intensity classifications and ember exposure areas as identified on the 
Jefferson County Wildland-Urban Interface Overlay District map. The level of structure 
hardening, defensible space, and other mitigation measures required shall correspond to 
the applicable wildland-urban interface classification, Class 1 Interface or Class 2 
Intermix. 

Structures and parcels identified with low fire intensity classification and are therefore 
located in the Interface Perimeter and Interface Interior zones shall be constructed and 
maintained in accordance with provisions for Class 1 Interface structure hardening and site 
and area requirements. 

Structures and parcels identified with moderate to high fire intensity classifications and 
therefore are in the Intermix zone shall be constructed and maintained in accordance with 
the provisions for Class 2 Intermix structure hardening and site and area requirements. 

SECTION 304: MAPPING AMENDMENT PROCESS 

304.1 General.  Property owners, or their representatives, who disagree with the wildland-
urban interface mapped areas, can submit a formal application for a map amendment 
pursuant to the process set forth in the Jefferson County Zoning Resolution. 

  



   
 

Jefferson County Wildfire Resiliency Code                                                     Page 17 
 

CHAPTER 4 – STRUCTURE HARDENING 

SECTION 401: GENERAL 

401.1 Scope.  Exterior design and construction of buildings and structures within the 
wildland-urban interface areas of Jefferson County shall be constructed in accordance 
with this chapter.  

SECTION 402: CLASS 1 INTERFACE STRUCTURE HARDENING 

402.1 General.  Class 1 structure hardening shall be in accordance with sections 402.2 
through 402.10 and shall apply to buildings and structures hereafter constructed, modified 
or relocated into or within areas of the wildland-urban interface Class 1. 

402.2 Roofing. Roof shall have a roof assembly classified as Class A when tested in 
accordance with ASTM E108 or UL790. 

402.2.1 Flame and ember protection of roofs.  For roof assemblies where the roof 
covering profile creates a space between the roof covering and roof deck, the space 
shall resist the entry of flames and embers by one or more of the following methods: 

1. Fire stopping, with noncombustible material, of the space between the roof 
covering and the roof deck. 

2. Installation of one layer of cap sheet complying with ASTM D3909 over the 
combustible roof deck. 

3. Installation of a listed Class A classified roof assembly. 

402.2.2 Open valley flashings. Open valley flashing shall not be less than 0.019 
inch (No. 26 galvanized sheet gauge) corrosion resistant metal installed over a 
minimum 36-inch-wide underlayment consisting of one layer of cap sheet 
complying with ASTM D3909 running the full length of the valley. 

402.3 Gutters and downspouts.  Gutters and downspouts shall be constructed of 
noncombustible material.  

402.4 Ventilation Openings.  Ventilation openings for enclosed attics, enclosed rafter 
spaces, and under floor spaces shall be in accordance with section 402.4.1 or Section 
402.4.2 as applicable. 

402.4.1 Performance requirements.  Ventilation openings shall be fully covered 
with listed vents, tested in accordance with ASTM E2886, to demonstrate 
compliance with all of the following requirements: 



   
 

Jefferson County Wildfire Resiliency Code                                                     Page 18 
 

1. There shall be no flaming ignition of the cotton material during the Ember 
Intrusion Test. 

2. There shall be no flaming ignition during the Integrity Test portion of the Flame 
Intrusion Test. 

3. The maximum temperature of the unexposed side of the vent shall not exceed 
662°F (350°C). 

402.4.2 Prescriptive requirements.  Ventilation openings for enclosed attics, 
enclosed rafter spaces, and under floor spaces shall be covered with 
noncombustible corrosion resistant mesh with openings not to exceed 1/8 inch. 

402.5 Exterior walls. Exterior walls shall be limited to the following: 

1. Vinyl siding as part of or applied to exterior wall assemblies with a 1-hour fire-
resistance rating, rated for exposure on the exterior side. 

2. Vinyl siding over noncombustible sheathing. 
3. A wall covered with noncombustible siding.  
4. A wall covered with fire-retardant-treated wood siding. 
5. A wall covered with siding made of ignition-resistant building materials. 
6. Mass timber or log wall construction. 

Such materials shall extend from the top of the foundation to the underside of the eave or 
the underside of the roof sheathing. Exterior wall coverings shall be labeled for exterior use.   

Exceptions: 

1. Exterior wall embellishments and architectural trim (exclusive of trim on exterior 
windows and doors) not to exceed 5 percent of the square footage of exterior 
walls. 

2. Roof or wall top cornice projections and similar assemblies. 
3. Solid wood rafter tails and solid wood blocking installed between rafters having 

a minimum dimension of 2 inches nominal. 

402.6 Flashing.  A minimum of 6 inches of metal flashing or noncombustible material 
applied vertically between the wall sheathing and the exterior cladding shall be installed at 
the ground, decking, and roof intersections. 

Combustible sheathing products exposed by the gap created at the base of the exterior 
walls, posts, or columns must be protected with noncombustible material or ignition-
resistant building materials while still permitting drainage and moisture control from 
behind exterior cladding. 



   
 

Jefferson County Wildfire Resiliency Code                                                     Page 19 
 

402.7 Exterior glazing. Exterior windows, window walls and glazed doors, windows within 
exterior doors, and skylights shall be tempered glass, multilayered glazed panels, glass 
block or have a fire protection rating of not less than 20 minutes. 

402.8 Underfloor enclosure. Buildings or structures shall have underfloor areas enclosed 
to the ground with exterior walls in accordance with Section 402.5. 

Exception: Complete enclosure shall not be required where the underside of 
exposed floors and exposed structural columns, beams and supporting walls are 
protected as required for exterior one hour fire-resistance-rated construction or 
mass timber construction or fire-retardant-treated wood.  

402.9 Decks, appendages, and projections.  Decks and other unenclosed accessory 
structures attached to buildings shall be constructed of materials per Sections 402.9.1 
through 402.9.2. 

402.9.1 Deck surface. Noncombustible material, approved composite lumber with 
an ASTM E84 flame spread index no greater than 75, ignition-resistant building 
materials, fire-retardant-treated wood, or any approved Class A roof assembly. 

402.9.2 Deck framing. Deck framing shall be constructed of one of the following: 

1. One-hour fire-resistance-rated construction. 
2. Mass timber construction.  
3. Approved noncombustible materials. 
4. Fire-retardant-treated wood. 
5. Ignition-resistant building materials. 
6. Wood with a minimum nominal thickness of at least two inches for joists and 

four inches for beams and columns or posts. Multi-ply beams and posts with an 
equivalent nominal four-inch thickness are allowed. 

402.10 Vehicle access door perimeter gap.  Exterior vehicle access door shall resist the 
intrusion of embers from entering by preventing gaps between doors and door openings, at 
the head, sill, and jam of doors from exceeding 1/8 inch. 

Gaps between doors and door openings shall be controlled by one of the following 
methods: 

1. Weather-stripping products made of materials that: (a) have been tested for tensile 
strength in accordance with ASTM D638 (Standard Test Method for Tensile 
Properties of Plastics) after exposure to ASTM G155 (Standard Practice for Operating 
Xenon Arc Light Apparatus for Exposure of Non-Metallic Materials) for a period of 
2,000 hours, when the maximum allowable difference in tensile strength values 



   
 

Jefferson County Wildfire Resiliency Code                                                     Page 20 
 

between exposed and non-exposed samples does not exceed 10 percent; and (b) 
exhibit a V-2 or better flammability rating when tested to UL 94 (Standards for Tests 
for Flammability of Plastic Materials for Parts in Devices and Appliances). 

2. Door overlaps onto jams and headers. 
3. Garage door jams and headers covered with metal flashing. 

SECTION 403: CLASS 2 INTERMIX STRUCTURE HARDENING 

403.1 General. Class 2 structure hardening shall be in accordance with sections 403.2 
through 403.3 as well as the provisions of Class 1 structure hardening in sections 402.2 
through 402.10.  

403.2 Protection of eaves and soffits.  Eaves and soffits shall be protected on the 
exposed underside by one of the following:  

1. Noncombustible material. 
2. Ignition-resistant building materials. 
3. Materials approved for not less than 1-hour fire-resistance-rated construction. 
4. 5/8 inch type X drywall. 
5. 2-inch nominal dimensional lumber. 
6. Fire-retardant-treated wood. 

Fascia, where provided and exposed, shall be protected on the backside by one of the 
following:  

1. Noncombustible material. 
2. Ignition-resistant building materials. 
3. Materials approved for not less than 1-hour fire-resistance-rated construction. 
4. 5/8 inch type X drywall. 
5. 2-inch nominal dimensional lumber. 
6. Fire-retardant-treated wood. 

403.3 Exterior Doors.  Exterior door shall be approved noncombustible construction, solid 
core wood not less than 1 3/4 inch thick or have a fire protection rating of not less than 20 
minutes. Windows within doors and glazed doors shall be in accordance with section 
402.7. 

Exception: Vehicle access doors. 

 



   
 

Jefferson County Wildfire Resiliency Code                                                     Page 21 
 

CHAPTER 5 – SITE AND AREA REQUIREMENTS 

SECTION 501: GENERAL 

501.1 Scope. The provisions of this chapter shall apply to parcels subject to this code. 

Exceptions: 

1. For Site and Area Requirements, only Structure Ignition Zone 1 standards apply 
to the reconstruction, replacement, alteration, or repair of the exterior walls of 
an existing building. 

2. The reconstruction, replacement, alteration, or repair of the existing exterior roof 
covering of an existing building. 

501.2 Reference. As needed, the Wildfire Mitigation Specialist shall refer to the most 
recent version of the Home Ignition Zone (HIZ) Guide as developed by the Colorado State 
Forest Service. Where conflicts occur between provisions of this code and the HIZ Guide, 
the provisions of this code shall govern. The provisions of this code, as applicable, shall 
take precedence over the provisions in the referenced standard. 

SECTION 502: CLASS 1 INTERFACE REQUIREMENTS 

502.1 Structure Ignition Zone 1 (0-5 feet): Immediate Zone.  

502.1.1 Objective. This zone is designated to reduce or eliminate ember ignition 
and direct flame contact with the structure, decks, stairs, and attachments. 

502.1.2 Materials. Use noncombustible, hard surface materials in this zone, such 
as rock, gravel, sand, concrete, bare earth or stone/concrete pavers. 

502.1.3 Plantings. Remove all plantings including shrubs, slash, combustible 
mulch and other woody debris. 

502.1.4 Trees. All following fuel modifications are required for trees: 

1. There shall be no planting of new trees in the Immediate Zone. Mature trees of no 
less than 10-inch diameter at 4.5 feet above ground level may be maintained. 

2. Tree crowns extending to within 10 feet of the nearest point of any structure shall 
be pruned to maintain a minimum clearance of 10 feet. 

3. Prune tree branches to a height of 6 to 10 feet from the ground or a third of the 
total height of the tree, whichever is less. 

502.1.5 Storage of combustibles. There shall be no storage of firewood or other 
combustible materials in this area or areas under decks. 



   
 

Jefferson County Wildfire Resiliency Code                                                     Page 22 
 

502.2 Structure Ignition Zone 2 (5-30 feet): Intermediate Zone.  

502.2.1 Objective.  This zone is designed to give an approaching fire less fuel, which 
will help reduce its intensity as it gets nearer to structures. 

502.2.2 Dead Materials.  Within the fuel modification area, hazardous dead plant 
material must be removed from live vegetation. 

502.2.3 Fuels accumulation. There shall be no large accumulations of surface 
fuels such as logs, branches, slash and combustible mulch. Mulch shall not exceed 
a maximum depth of 4 inches. Firewood piles must be kept at least 30 feet away 
from habitable structures unless stored in a noncombustible container or structure 
comprised of ignition resistant building materials or noncombustible materials. 

502.2.4 Trees. Tree crowns extending to within 10 feet of the nearest point of any 
structure shall be pruned to maintain a minimum clearance of 10 feet. 

Prune tree branches to a height of 6 to 10 feet from the ground or a third of the total 
height of the tree, whichever is less. 

502.2.5 Shrubs. Shrub groups within this zone shall be spaced to prevent structure 
ignition. Shrubs shall not be planted under trees within the tree drip line.  

502.2.6 Prohibited Plants. Juniperus spp. (Juniper species), Thuja occidentalis 
(American arborvitae), Thuja orientalis (Oriental arborvitae), Quercus gambelii 
(Gambel oak) are prohibited.   

502.2.7 Slope adjustment. For tree removals on any slopes of 20% or greater, the 
Wildfire Mitigation Specialist may determine additional tree spacing is necessary to 
reduce potential fire behavior on slopes. 

502.3 Retaining walls.  The exposed exterior of retaining walls shall be constructed with 
either noncombustible or ignition-resistant building materials when any of the following 
conditions exist: 

1. The retaining wall is within 8 feet of the nearest point of a structure regulated by this 
code or up to the property line when the property line is less than 8 feet away from 
the structure. 

2. The retaining wall is integral to the support of a structure regulated by this code. 
3. The retaining wall is integral to the egress from a structure regulated by this code to 

a public way, easement, or private road. 



   
 

Jefferson County Wildfire Resiliency Code                                                     Page 23 
 

502.4 Fencing.  Fencing within 8 feet of the nearest point of a structure regulated by this 
code or up to the property line when the property line is less than 8 feet away from the 
structure shall be constructed with noncombustible or ignition-resistant building materials. 

502.5 Site Signage 

502.5.1 Marking of roads. Approved signs or other approved notices shall be 
provided and maintained for access roads and driveways to identify such roads and 
prohibit the obstruction thereof. 

502.5.2 Marking of fire protection equipment. Fire protection equipment and fire 
hydrants shall be clearly identified in a manner approved by the code official to 
prevent obstruction. 

502.5.3 Address markers. Buildings shall have a permanently posted address, 
which shall be placed at each driveway entrance and be visible from both directions 
of travel along the road. In all cases, the address shall be posted at the beginning of 
construction and shall be maintained thereafter, and the address shall be visible 
and legible from the road on which the address is located in a manner approved by 
the code official. 

SECTION 503: CLASS 2 INTERMIX REQUIREMENTS 

503.1 Structure Ignition Zone 1 (0-5 feet): Immediate Zone.  

503.1.1 Objective. This zone is designated to reduce or eliminate ember ignition 
and direct flame contact with the structure, decks, stairs, and attachments. 

503.1.2 Materials. Use noncombustible, hard surface materials in this zone, such 
as rock, gravel, sand, concrete, bare earth or stone/concrete pavers. 

503.1.3 Plantings.  Remove all plantings including shrubs, slash, combustible 
mulch and other woody debris. 

503.1.4 Trees. All following fuel modifications are required for trees:  

1. There shall be no planting of new trees in the Immediate Zone. Mature trees of no 
less than 10-inch diameter at 4.5 feet above ground level may be maintained. 

2. Tree crowns extending to within 10 feet of the nearest point of any structure shall 
be pruned to maintain a minimum clearance of 10 feet. 

3. Prune tree branches to a height of 6 to 10 feet from the ground or a third of the 
total height of the tree, whichever is less. 



   
 

Jefferson County Wildfire Resiliency Code                                                     Page 24 
 

503.1.5 Storage of combustibles. There shall be no storage of firewood or other 
combustible materials in this area or areas under decks. 

503.2 Structure Ignition Zone 2 (5-30 feet): Intermediate Zone.  

503.2.1 Objective.  This zone is designed to give an approaching fire less fuel, which 
will help reduce its intensity as it gets nearer to structures. 

503.2.2 Dead Materials.  Within the fuel modification area, hazardous dead plant 
material must be removed from live vegetation. 

503.2.3 Fuels accumulation. There shall be no large accumulations of surface 
fuels such as logs, branches, slash and combustible mulch. Mulch shall not exceed 
a maximum depth of 4 inches. Firewood piles must be kept at least 30 feet away 
from habitable structures unless stored in a noncombustible container or structure 
comprised of ignition resistant building materials or noncombustible materials. 

503.2.4 Trees. Tree crowns extending to within 10 feet of the nearest point of any 
structure shall be pruned to maintain a minimum clearance of 10 feet. 

Prune tree branches to a height of 6 to 10 feet from the ground or a third of the total 
height of the tree, whichever is less. 

503.2.5 Tree spacing. Tree crowns within this zone shall be spaced to prevent 
structure ignition and promote fuel discontinuity to limit fire spread. 

503.2.6 Shrubs. Shrub groups within this zone shall be spaced to prevent structure 
ignition. Shrubs shall be at least 10 feet away from the edge of tree branches. 

503.2.7 Prohibited Plants. Juniperus spp. (Juniper species), Thuja occidentalis 
(American arborvitae), Thuja orientalis (Oriental arborvitae), Quercus gambelii 
(Gambel oak) are prohibited.   

503.2.8 Slope adjustment. For tree removals on any slopes of 20% or greater, the 
Wildfire Mitigation Specialist may determine additional tree spacing is necessary to 
reduce potential fire behavior on slopes. 

503.3 Retaining walls.  The exposed exterior of retaining walls shall be constructed with 
either noncombustible or ignition-resistant building materials when any of the following 
conditions exist: 

1. The retaining wall is within 8 feet of the nearest point of a structure regulated by this 
code or up to the property line when the property line is less than 8 feet away from the 
structure. 



   
 

Jefferson County Wildfire Resiliency Code                                                     Page 25 
 

2. The retaining wall is integral to the support of a structure regulated by this code. 
3. The retaining wall is integral to the egress from a structure regulated by this code to a 

public way, easement, or private road. 

503.4 Fencing.  Fencing within 8 feet of the nearest point of a structure regulated by this 
code or up to the property line when the property line is less than 8 feet away from the 
structure shall be constructed with noncombustible or ignition-resistant building materials. 

503.5 Site Signage 

503.5.1 Marking of roads. Approved signs or other approved notices shall be 
provided and maintained for access roads and driveways to identify such roads and 
prohibit the obstruction thereof. 

503.5.2 Marking of fire protection equipment. Fire protection equipment and fire 
hydrants shall be clearly identified in a manner approved by the code official to 
prevent obstruction. 

503.5.3 Address markers. Buildings shall have a permanently posted address, 
which shall be placed at each driveway entrance and be visible from both directions 
of travel along the road. In all cases, the address shall be posted at the beginning of 
construction and shall be maintained thereafter, and the address shall be visible 
and legible from the road on which the address is located in a manner approved by 
the code official. 

503.6 Structure Ignition Zone 3 (30-100 feet): Extended Zone.   

503.6.1 Objective.  This zone focuses on mitigation that keeps fire on the ground. 

503.6.2 Trees. Prune tree branches to a height of 6 to 10 feet from the ground or a 
third of the total height of the tree, whichever is less. 

503.6.3 Tree spacing. Tree crowns within this zone shall be spaced at a minimum of 
6 to 10 feet.  

503.6.4 Dead materials. Within the fuel modification area, hazardous dead plant 
material must be removed from live vegetation. 

503.6.5 Fuels accumulation. There shall be no large accumulations of surface 
fuels such as logs, branches, slash and combustible mulch. Mulch shall not exceed 
a maximum depth of 4 inches.  



   
 

Jefferson County Wildfire Resiliency Code                                                     Page 26 
 

503.6.6 Slope adjustment. For tree removals on any slopes of 20% or greater, the 
Wildfire Mitigation Specialist may determine additional tree spacing is necessary to 
reduce potential fire behavior on slopes. 

 


	ADP55EF.tmp
	Budget vs Actual 2019

	ADP9E75.tmp
	Budget vs Actual 2019 CRRF

	ADPF7DD.tmp
	MESSAGE FROM THE CHIEF
	• Volunteer firefighters had 60 hours of staffing at Station 1.
	• Elk Creek Averaged 3.3 members per call.
	• 22.7% of the calls overlapped (23 Calls)
	• Average Response Time 9:51
	 May was a month to start to get back to in person trainings with less than 10 people and using social distance guidelines.
	 Firefighters logged 660  hours of training for the month with 70 class hours. 10 Members completed the “Rigging for Rescue” class  which is a week-long technical rope rescue class.
	 The training committee is finalizing the training calendar for the rest of the year and including Inter Canyon.
	• Fire Marshal Parker completed 12 inspections for the month of May.
	• The public meeting for the Conifer Commons development was a Zoom meeting with a large turnout of community members. The County should have the final decision for the rezoning soon.
	• The wildland fire assessment program is being built. We did not receive any grant funding for the implementation but there are still several funding options Captain Yellin is exploring. We will be hiring a part time employee to do the assessing. The...
	 Elk Creek responded to 2 wildland fires in May. Both were small and contained quickly.
	 We will be standing up a Rapid Extraction Module this season. This  is a technical rescue resource for wildland incidents. Captain Sander is heading up the program. The unit will be available in the next month.
	 Elk Creek will be making resources available nationally this week.
	 Fire season is getting a slow start with a national PL of 2. COVID is complicating things with COVID checklists and other added complexities.
	 Elk Creek resources will be self-sufficient for 3 days and the module will be self-sufficient for 14 days as part of the COVID-19 precautions.
	Station 1
	 The water supply that was completed 5 months ago has failed. The vendor is currently looking at the reason for the failure and working on repairs. Depending on what failed will determine if who is responsible for the repairs.
	 Light bars have been added to a command truck and the fire marshal truck.
	 Rescue 480 is OOS for a turbo issue, a type 1 engine is OOS for an overheating issue.
	 Hose and ladder testing is completed for the year.
	 We have received bids for the bay door project and we are currently selecting a vendor.
	Station 2
	 1 Conex will be added to the station to increase storage as well as a work area on the side of the unit.


	April 2020 Income Statement.pdf
	Budget vs Actual 2020

	April 2020 Wildland Statement.pdf
	Budget vs Actual 2020 CRRF

	April 2020 Income Statement.pdf
	Budget vs Actual 2020

	April 2020 Wildland Statement.pdf
	Budget vs Actual 2020 CRRF

	ADP53C1.tmp
	Budget vs Actual 2019

	ADPBE16.tmp
	Budget vs Actual 2019 CRRF

	ADP12D8.tmp
	MESSAGE FROM THE CHIEF
	• Volunteer firefighters had 240 hours of staffing at Station 1.
	• Elk Creek Averaged 3.1 members per call.
	• 14% of the calls overlapped (17 Calls)
	• Average Response Time 10:15
	• The 5 fires were wildland fire incidents.
	 Firefighters logged 45  hours of training for the month.
	 We are still trying to get back to in person trainings while keeping COVID precautions in place.
	• Fire Marshal Parker completed 43 inspections for the month of August.
	• The Elk Creek CWPP is in need of updating. Captain Yellin is currently speaking with The Forest Stewards Guild to get an RFP. We are going to be doing the CWPP together with Inter Canyon. It will include both districts and identify risk areas and he...
	• The Wildfire Prepared Home Assessment Program is going well with 22 completed assessments and 20 appointments scheduled.
	Station 1
	 The station is getting caught up on maintance projects including some painting and LED light installation.
	Station 4
	• The well test was completed and the flow is .8 GPM. That flow rate is not sufficient for a cistern fill.


	ADPA19F.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADPFA19.tmp
	Budget vs Actual 2019

	ADP8793.tmp
	Budget vs Actual 2019

	ADPC3A4.tmp
	Budget vs Actual 2019 CRRF

	ADP747.tmp
	MESSAGE FROM THE CHIEF
	• Volunteer firefighters had 72 hours of staffing at Station 1.
	• Elk Creek Averaged 2.8 members per call.
	• 36% of the calls overlapped (28 Calls)
	• Average Response Time 9:53
	 Firefighters logged 61  hours of training for the month.
	 The training chief job opening has closed and we are working on the selection process. The plan is to have someone on board by November.
	• Fire Marshal Parker completed 7 inspections for the month of September.
	• McGrath consulting is working on the impact study for the Conifer Commons Development. We have been providing response data and other information.
	• Fire Marshal Parker has been working with First Due Size Up and now has the ability to attach pictures to our preplans and is currently improving our pre plan data in the district and surrounding areas.
	• We are going to include updating our CWPP in 2021. Captain Yellin is working with the same vendor that Platte Canyon and Evergreen have used to get pricing on the project.
	Station 1
	 The pump/ hydrant has been repaired at station 1.
	 After looking at options, a mid-size truck has been ordered to add a command truck to the fleet. This will replace the suburban that is currently assigned to the Chief.
	 We are currently looking at pricing for a UTV for the wildland fire suppression module.
	 Both boilers at the station have failed and are being repaired.
	 Several maintance issues are being taken care of in the living quarters.
	 Elk Creek has been invited to sit in on the design phase of the new stations at Inter- Canyon.


	ADP2EE0.tmp
	ECFD Income-Budgets Summary

	ADP27FA.tmp
	1. The regular election of the eligible electors of the District shall be held on May 3, 2022, between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. pursuant to and in accordance with the Election Laws, and other applicable laws.  At that time, three (3) Direc...
	2. There shall be one election precinct for the convenience of the eligible electors of the District, the boundaries of which shall be identical to the boundaries of the District, and there shall be one (1) polling place at the following location:
	3. The Board of Directors hereby designates __Sue Blair________________  as the Designated Election Official for the conduct of the Election on behalf of the District and they are hereby authorized and directed to proceed with any action necessary or ...
	4. Self-Nomination and Acceptance forms are available at the Designated Election Official at email address _soneill@crsofcolorado.com_.  All candidates must file a Self-Nomination and Acceptance form with the Designated Election Official no earlier th...
	5. If the only matter before the electors is the election of Directors of the District and if, at the close of business on March 1, 2022, there are not more candidates than offices to be filled at the Election, including candidates timely filing affid...
	6. If any part or provision of this Resolution is adjudged to be unenforceable or invalid, such judgment shall not affect, impair or invalidate the remaining provisions of this Resolution, it being the Board’s intention that the various provisions her...
	7. Any and all actions previously taken by the Designated Election Official, the Secretary of the Board of Directors, or any other persons acting on their behalf pursuant to the Election Laws or other applicable laws, are hereby ratified and confirmed.
	8. All acts, orders, and resolutions, or parts thereof, of the Board which are inconsistent or in conflict with this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent only of such inconsistency or conflict.
	9. The provisions of this Resolution shall take effect immediately.

	ADPD40B.tmp
	https://www.elkcreekfire.org

	ADP4092.tmp
	CALL FOR NOMINATIONS FOR ELK CREEK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

	ADPD310.tmp
	ECFD Income-Budgets Summary

	ADP2A79.tmp
	MESSAGE FROM THE CHIEF
	• Volunteer firefighters had 165 hours of staffing at Station 1.
	• Elk Creek Averaged 3 members per call.
	• 7% of the calls overlapped (8 Calls)
	• Average Response Time 9:39
	 Firefighters logged 711 hours of training for the month.
	 The 2023 fire academy has received 15 applications for volunteer firefighter positions. Captain Winefeldt is handling the recruiting and academy.
	 The joint burn building project with Platte Canyon is expected to be in service by the spring of 2023.
	 Elk Creek has 9 firefighters in EMT class hosted by Inter Canyon and they are expected to graduate by the end of the year.
	 Elk Creek has signed a contract with Vector Solutions which is an online training system that most of the fire departments in CO use. It will allow a more modern training program and offer more online training options for firefighters. This will all...
	 We have been using the old Marshdale Elementary School building for training.
	• Fire Marshal Parker completed 20 inspections for the month of February.
	• The transition to hybrid vehicles has worked out well with the Ford Escapes getting an average of 35 mpg as opposed to 11 mpg with the older vehicles.
	•  We have done some work to one of the older brush trucks. It has been painted and the service body has been changed to a flat bed. It will be used as a utility truck for the district.
	• There has been a tire mounting machine as well as a balancer added to the fleet maintenance department.
	• The 1998 engine had a mechanical issue and is out of service.
	• This is the season to replace tires before winter. We had to replace tires on 2 of our type 1 engines because they had aged out. The new standard is 8 years for end of life on fire engine tires. Once we have the tire machine operational, a few more ...
	• Station 4 had a heater fail and it has been repaired.
	• Station 1 and 4 had garage door issues and are waiting on parts.
	• Station 1 has added 3 refrigerators for the living quarters and the range vent has been repaired for the 3rd time in 5 years.


	ADP26A7.tmp
	ECFD Income-Budgets Summary

	ADP122C.tmp
	ECFD Financial YTD 2023 

	ADP7F50.tmp
	Sheet2

	ADP5F4E.tmp
	MESSAGE FROM THE CHIEF
	• Volunteer firefighters had 315 hours of staffing at Station 1.
	• Elk Creek Averaged 3.8 members per call.
	• 16% of the calls overlapped (17 Calls)
	• Average Response Time 8:34
	 Firefighters logged 596 hours of training for the month.
	 The 2023 Fire Academy is finishing up FF1 with 10 recruits.
	Facilities:
	• Station 3 is having siding completed as well as painting.
	• We will be ordering lifts for the fleet maintance division. After a long process of elimination and research, a unit has been selected. They will deliver before the end of the year.


	ADP9EBE.tmp
	Income_Budget Summary 

	ADP9778.tmp
	Income_Budget Summary 

	ADPC2C.tmp
	ECFD Income-Budgets YTD 2024

	ADP80E1.tmp
	Account  Reconciliation

	ADP63B9.tmp
	Account  Reconciliation

	ADPE25D.tmp
	ECFD Income-Budgets YTD 2024

	ADPE8CB.tmp
	MESSAGE FROM THE CHIEF
	• Volunteer firefighters had 175 hours of staffing at Station 1.
	• Elk Creek Averaged 3.5 members per call.
	• 10% of the calls overlapped (8 Calls)
	• Average Response Time 8:02
	 Firefighters logged 683 hours of training for the month.
	 The 2023 Fire Academy has one more class to complete their basic wildland firefighter training.
	 Elk Creek hosted a L-280 Followership to Leadership class. The class had 30 students from The US Forest Service, Inter Canyon Fire, Evergreen Fire and Elk Creek. The instructors were from West Metro Fire, The Colorado Division of Fire Prevention and...
	 The New Self Contained Breathing Apparatus training is completed and the units are being placed in service.
	 Firefighters are completing their annual wildland fire safety refresher.
	• Fire Marshal Parker completed 55 inspections for the month of March.
	• The Deputy Fire Marshal has been filled with Rachel Rush.
	•  Station 4 has had a remodel of the bathroom and office completed. The contractor also replaced the cedar shake siding and repainted the doors.
	• After several set-backs and a vendor who could not deliver the product, the Wildland Modules new service body is set for delivery next week.
	• The new Chip Truck has been delivered and will be well under budget.


	ADP15F2.tmp
	MESSAGE FROM THE CHIEF
	• Volunteer firefighters had 329 hours of staffing at Station 1.
	• Elk Creek Averaged 3.5 members per call.
	• 16% of the calls overlapped (16 Calls)
	• Average Response Time 12:13
	 Firefighters logged 407 hours of training for the month.
	 Firefighters completed the Wildland Fire Refresher Training (RT-130)


	ADP5CD3.tmp
	ECFDCash Disbursements Journal

	ADP7E26.tmp
	ECFD Income-Budgets YTD 2024

	ADP9C69.tmp
	ECFD Income-Budgets YTD 2024

	ADPCB9.tmp
	Account  Reconciliation

	ADP58C8.tmp
	MESSAGE FROM THE CHIEF
	• Volunteer firefighters had 402 hours of staffing at Station 1.
	• Elk Creek Averaged 3.4 members per call.
	• 32% of the calls overlapped (46 Calls)
	• Average Response Time 8:34
	 Firefighters logged 293 hours of training for the month.
	 Firefighters have completed the physical testing for the year including the Fire Fighter Physical Aptitude Test and the Wildland Pack Test.


	ADP396A.tmp
	MESSAGE FROM THE CHIEF
	• Volunteer firefighters had 136 hours of staffing at Station 1.
	• Elk Creek Averaged 3.1 members per call.
	• 22% of the calls overlapped (28 Calls)
	• Average Response Time 9:36
	 Firefighters participated in Rescue Task Force training with Jefferson County Deputies and other law enforcement agencies.
	 8 inspections
	 18 Letters, County Referrals, and Insurance requests
	 2 Plan Reviews
	 Started Elevation Celebration Planning adding an MCI plan and the cadets running a combat challenge course as a demonstration and recruitment tool.
	 Cause of the bonanza fire was stain rags not stored or disposed of properly


	ADP1FFF.tmp
	Income Statement May 2024

	ADP5C75.tmp
	Income Statement May 2024

	ADP732D.tmp
	Account  Reconciliation

	ADP8A02.tmp
	Account  Reconciliation

	ADP84BF.tmp
	MESSAGE FROM THE CHIEF
	• Volunteer firefighters had 296 hours of staffing at Station 1.
	• Elk Creek Averaged 3 members per call.
	• 20% of the calls overlapped (19 Calls)
	• Average Response Time 7:49
	 Elk Creek was able to send several firefighters to a Colorado State Firefighters Association live fire training.
	 We are looking at moving training to twice a month due to lack of participation.
	


	ADP5420.tmp
	ECFD Income-Budgets YTD 2024

	ADP1C93.tmp
	Account  Reconciliation

	ADP4B08.tmp
	Account  Reconciliation

	ADP741D.tmp
	Account  Reconciliation

	ADP8B74.tmp
	ECFD Income-Budgets YTD 2024

	ADP1B7D.tmp
	ECFD Income-Budgets YTD 2024

	ADP2245.tmp
	MESSAGE FROM THE CHIEF
	• Volunteer firefighters had 195 hours of staffing at Station 1.
	• Elk Creek Averaged 5 members per call.
	• 17% of the calls overlapped (18 Calls)
	• Average Response Time 9:11
	 Firefighters recorded 117 hours of training for the month.
	FIRE PREVENTION
	


	ADPB083.tmp
	Account  Reconciliation

	ADPE679.tmp
	Account  Reconciliation

	ADPD1E.tmp
	Account  Reconciliation

	ADPC98A.tmp
	MESSAGE FROM THE CHIEF
	• Volunteer firefighters had 195 hours of staffing at Station 1.
	• Elk Creek Averaged 5 members per call.
	• 17% of the calls overlapped (18 Calls)
	• Average Response Time 9:11
	 Firefighters recorded 117 hours of training for the month.
	FIRE PREVENTION
	 9 inspections
	 16 Letters and referrals
	 Attended the Vision 20/20 Data Analysis Class hosted locally which was the first big step for the Community Risk Assessment.
	 Worked with Captain Yellin to develop the first MCI Plan for Elevation Celebration.
	 Worked with Jefferson County Planning and Zoning on meetings to help move the Transportation Design and Construction Manual forward.
	 Investigations: Styve Road structure fire worked with CDFPC, cause is currently undetermined.
	 A new AED has been installed at Station 3 next to the front door.


	ADP5315.tmp
	ECFD Income-Budgets YTD 2024

	ADPE548.tmp
	ELK CREEK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
	RESOLUTION NO. 2024-_09_
	RESOLUTION AND ORDER OF EXCLUSION
	1. The Property described in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein shall be excluded from Elk Creek Fire Protection District.
	2. The boundaries of Elk Creek Fire Protection District shall be altered by the exclusion of the Property.
	3. Such exclusion shall be contingent upon the District Court of Jefferson County, Colorado, in which Court an Order was entered establishing this District, having entered an Order that such real property be excluded from Elk Creek Fire Protection Dis...

	ADPD335.tmp
	ECFPD Check Register

	ADPA5F.tmp
	ECFPD Check Register

	ADP43B1.tmp
	Account  Register

	ADP314F.tmp
	MESSAGE FROM THE CHIEF
	• Volunteer firefighters had 66 hours of staffing at Station 1.
	• Elk Creek Averaged 2.9 members per call.
	• 17% of the calls overlapped (20 Calls)
	• Average Response Time 10:21
	 Firefighters recorded 121 hours of training for the month.
	FIRE PREVENTION
	Conifer Wildland Division
	Wildfire Division Report
	Time & Work Report
	September 2024
	 Wildfire Prepared/ Project Planning
	 Kaleigh completed 56 home assessments in the district, 80 scheduled. This shows an increase after the quarry fire.
	 6 more certified homes this year
	 Ambassadors
	 33 Ambassadors
	 Got the mapping done for all North Fork planning Units (10) and have our first ambassador down there.
	Fuels Crew and Module:
	- Chipping program continues
	- two more houses to complete in group 4
	- 1,115 Cubic yards/chipped to date (already over last year’s biomass final numbers)
	- Working with the county to integrate our fuels data to have a more accurate picture of potential fire behavior and inform fire restrictions
	- Still working on projects in sampson maxwell, and Denver water property in Foxton.
	- The Glenelk project is finalized and is being submitted for reimbursement.


	ADPFB4.tmp
	ECFPD Check Register

	ADP7F38.tmp
	Account  Reconciliation

	ADPBD0E.tmp
	Account  Reconciliation

	ADPED09.tmp
	Account  Reconciliation

	ADP1767.tmp
	Account  Register

	ADP5E74.tmp
	ECFPD Check Register

	ADPEA2C.tmp
	Account  Register

	ADP1AD3.tmp
	MESSAGE FROM THE CHIEF
	• Volunteer firefighters had 192.5 hours of staffing at Station 1.
	• Elk Creek Averaged 3 members per call.
	• 10% of the calls overlapped (9 Calls)
	• Average Response Time 11:14
	 Firefighters recorded 89 hours of training for the month.
	FIRE PREVENTION


	ADP844D.tmp
	Director, Elk Creek FPD
	EXHIBIT A

	Check Register October 2024.pdf
	ECFPD Check Register

	10 Oct 2024 Sage Financial Report.pdf
	ECFD Income-Budgets YTD 2024

	ADPD9CE.tmp
	ACH 

	ADP3A09.tmp
	ACH

	ADP6F64.tmp
	ECFPD Check Register

	ADPAF9B.tmp
	ECFD Income-Budgets YTD 2024

	ADP45A1.tmp
	• Volunteer firefighters had 139 hours of staffing at Station 1.
	• Elk Creek Averaged 3 members per call.
	• 21% of the calls overlapped (19 Calls)
	• Average Response Time 9:06
	 Firefighters recorded 161 hours of training for the month.
	FIRE PREVENTION
	• 14 inspections and permits
	• 16 Letters, county referrals, and insurance requests
	• Organized pre-incident survey tours at the new CORE facility for all three shifts with volunteer and mutual aid involvement. Thanks to CORE and Saunders Construction for their help.
	• Attended the Colorado International Association of Arson Investigators Conference

	ADP8377.tmp
	ECFD Income-Budgets YTD 2024

	ADP178B.tmp
	• Volunteer firefighters had 67 hours of staffing at Station 1.
	• Elk Creek Averaged 3 members per call.
	• 19% of the calls overlapped (17 Calls)
	• Average Response Time 9:38
	 Firefighters recorded 104 hours of training for the month.
	FIRE PREVENTION

	ADP10E9.tmp
	ECFPD Check Register

	ADP250.tmp
	ECFPD Check Register

	ADP3AC3.tmp
	Account  Register

	ADPCDED.tmp
	ELK CREEK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

	ADP1103.tmp
	ELK CREEK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

	ADPB498.tmp
	ECFD Income-Budgets YTD 2024

	ADP9AD6.tmp
	ECFD Income-Budgets YTD 2024

	ADP6883.tmp
	ECFPD Check Register

	ADP58A1.tmp
	ECFPD Check Register

	ADP8B3D.tmp
	Account  Register

	ADP6849.tmp
	• Volunteer firefighters had 67 hours of staffing at Station 1.
	• Elk Creek Averaged 3 members per call.
	• 22% of the calls overlapped (19 Calls)
	• Average Response Time 9:15
	 Firefighters recorded 294 hours of training for the month.
	 We hosted a Sleep Recovery class with Conifer Fire Department and had members from both Elk Creek and Conifer FD attend.
	FIRE PREVENTION

	ADPD4EC.tmp
	• Volunteer firefighters had 182 hours of staffing at Station 1.
	• Elk Creek Averaged 2.8 members per call.
	• 22% of the calls overlapped (18 Calls)
	• Average Response Time 9:40
	 Firefighters recorded 486 hours of training for the month.
	 Firefighters are completing the annual Wildland Fire refresher training and starting to complete pack tests.
	FIRE PREVENTION

	ADP1887.tmp
	ECFD Income-Budgets YTD 2025

	ADPA9C7.tmp
	ECFPD Check Register

	ADPE9B0.tmp
	Account  Register

	ADP8577.tmp
	ECFD Income-Budgets YTD 2024

	ADPB730.tmp
	Account  Register

	ADPFBDC.tmp
	ECFPD Check Register

	04.2025 Chiefs report.pdf
	• Volunteer firefighters had 49 hours of staffing at Station 1.
	• Elk Creek Averaged 3 members per call.
	• 17% of the calls overlapped (20 Calls)
	• Average Response Time 9:09
	 Firefighters recorded 369 hours of training for the month.
	 Firefighters are completing the Wildland Pack Tests for the 2025 fire season.
	 Elk Creek hosted an S 131 Advanced Wildland Firefighter training as well as S211 Portable Pumps and Water use. There were students from Conifer Fire Department, U.S Forest Service and West Metro Fire Protection District. Thanks to the Conifer Wildla...
	FIRE PREVENTION
	FLEET/ FACILITIES
	• March has had a number of mechanical issues including some major repairs on an engine and two ambulances.
	• The light rescue is still out for repairs after an accident during a snowstorm. The vendor has said the repairs should be complete in April.
	• Station 3 has a roof leak that is being addressed.

	ADP944A.tmp
	MEMORANDUM
	GASB 68 Report
	SOC 1 Type 2 Report
	Fiduciary Net Position Schedule
	Implementation

	MEMORANDUM
	Allocation Report
	Annual Contributions Received
	Direct Expense Allocation Summary

	Fire and Police Pension Association

	ADPFAB2.tmp
	ECFD Income-Budgets YTD 2024

	ADP38A7.tmp
	Account  Register

	ADPCAD7.tmp
	Account  Register

	ADP5914.tmp
	• Volunteer firefighters had 76 hours of staffing at Station 1.
	• Elk Creek Averaged 2.8 members per call.
	• 18% of the calls overlapped (17 Calls)
	• Average Response Time 8:05
	 Firefighters completed 124 hours of training
	 Firefighters have completed an updated Electric Vehicle Fire training and added an EV Fire suppression blanket to E431
	FIRE PREVENTION
	FLEET/ FACILITIES
	• All Elk Creek apparatus is in service after several big-ticket repairs over the last two months.
	• New security cameras have been installed at St. 1.

	ADP339C.tmp
	MESSAGE FROM THE CHIEF
	• Volunteer firefighters had 136 hours of staffing at Station 1.
	• Elk Creek Averaged 3.1 members per call.
	• 22% of the calls overlapped (28 Calls)
	• Average Response Time 9:36
	 Firefighters participated in Rescue Task Force training with Jefferson County Deputies and other law enforcement agencies.
	 8 inspections
	 18 Letters, County Referrals, and Insurance requests
	 2 Plan Reviews
	 Started Elevation Celebration Planning adding an MCI plan and the cadets running a combat challenge course as a demonstration and recruitment tool.
	 Cause of the bonanza fire was stain rags not stored or disposed of properly


	ADP578C.tmp
	• Volunteer firefighters had 185 hours of staffing at Station 1.
	• Elk Creek Averaged 3.3 members per call.
	• 9% of the calls overlapped (8 Calls)
	• Average Response Time 8:30
	 Firefighters completed 431 hours of training
	 The Module completed the Critical 80 hours of refresher training and is in service.
	FIRE PREVENTION

	ADP9053.tmp
	ECFD Income-Budgets YTD 2025

	ADPF5FE.tmp
	Account  Register

	ADP74E0.tmp
	• Volunteer firefighters had 341 hours of staffing at Station 1.
	• Average Response Time 9:06
	FIRE PREVENTION
	FLEET/ FACILITIES
	• A small construction project in the ready room at Station 1 created 2 more offices.

	Revenue and Expenses January 2026.pdf
	Sheet1

	Revenue and Expenses January 2026.pdf
	Sheet1




